

Udayana University BURNOUT
OF PUBLIC HOSPITAL NURSE:
DOES WORK STRESS AND
WORKLOAD CAUSE
PROLONGED PHYSICAL,
EMOTIONAL, AND MENTAL
EXHAUSTION

by Ni Made Dias Dinanda

Submission date: 17-Sep-2024 12:08PM (UTC+0700)

Submission ID: 2456646110

File name: artikel-Ni_Made_Dias_Dinanda_1_Rev.docx (72.7K)

Word count: 7157

Character count: 38966

BURNOUT OF PUBLIC HOSPITAL NURSE: DOES WORK STRESS AND WORKLOAD CAUSE PROLONGED PHYSICAL, EMOTIONAL, AND MENTAL EXHAUSTION?

Ni Made Dias Dinanda
Management, Udayana University

I Gusti Ayu Manuati Dewi
Management, Udayana University

ABSTRACT

Burnout is a condition of prolonged physical, emotional and mental exhaustion. Burnout refers to a condition that the required resources and abilities are no longer sufficient to meet job requirements. The aim of this research is to analyze the role of work stress in mediating the influence of workload on burnout. This research was conducted at one General Hospital in Bali Province-Indonesia. The theory refer to this study is Attribution Theory. The number of samples in this study was 56 nurses which determined by using saturated sampling. Data collection was carried out through interview and distributing questionnaires. Path analysis was implemented to test the hypothesis. The findings show that workload has a positive and significant effect on burnout and job stress, job stress has a positive and significant effect on burnout and mediates the influence of workload on burnout partially. The implication of this study is empirically supports attribution theory, which explains a person's behavior based on three factors: specificity (behavior varying across different situations), consensus (similar responses from people in the same situation), and consistency (behavior remaining stable across actions). The practical implications of this research are expected to serve as considerations and feedback for leaders of public hospitals in addressing burnout by paying attention to the workload and work-related stress experienced by their nurses.

Keywords: work stress, workload, burnout

INTRODUCTION

Human resources become important asset of an organization that will be directly related to managing, organizing and carrying out activities in an organization. Therefore, they must be managed well in order to achieve a balance between individual needs and organizational demands. The quality of human resources will determine the company's success in achieving its goals. Recruitment, selection, placement, and training and development are Human resource management functions which aims to improve employee performance. Employees who have gone through these management stages are not free from various problems such as work stress and burnout. Employees who experience burnout can have a negative impact on the organization, such as decreased performance and increased absenteeism and turnover.

Burnout is a syndrome characterized by extreme physical and mental fatigue (Putu et al., 2021) or a feeling of tiredness, both physical and mental, that arises when someone experiences too much stress for a long period of time (Adiguna & Suwandana, 2023). According to Putu et al. (2021), burnout is characterized by attitude and behavior change in the form of a reaction to withdrawing psychologically from work, such as maintaining distance or being cynical, playing truant, often being late, and a strong desire to change jobs. This type of emotional instability is the result of feeling of less satisfied with the broad demands of work (Afzal et al., 2019)

Commented [M1]: Pastikan semua acuan sudah tercantum dalam bibliography. Cek satu persatu.

Burnout refers to a condition that resources and abilities are no longer sufficient to meet job requirements (Lan et al., 2018). Burnout is heavier than stress and is not a symptom of work stress, but rather the result of work stress itself which cannot be controlled. A person who cannot ease the workload tend to experience burnout at the workplace (Kosasih, 2019). Workload influence the emergence of burnout (Putu et al., 2021). Around 43 percent of employees in the service sector experiences burnout in their job (Dewi & Riana, 2019). It is also explained that workload has a positive and significant effect on burnout.

Workload can be defined as the number of activities that must be completed by a person or group of people during a certain period of time under normal circumstances (Kosasih, 2019). The excessive workload will cause burnout (Atmaja & Suana, 2018). This is in accordance with research conducted by Paramitha et al., (2023) which state that an accumulation of workload will result in a decrease in performance and increase of work stress. Research results from Wijaya & Wibawa (2020) explain that excessive workload has a positive influence on burnout.

Workload problems will affect the level of burnout and work stress experienced by a person (Sintyadewi & Dew., 2020). One impacts of work stress that develops in a negative direction is burnout. Burnout is a psychological process resulting from work stress. Employees who experience burnout will experience emotional exhaustion, personality changes, and a decreased sense of accomplishment.

Work stress is defined as work demands that exceed a person's abilities over a long period of time beyond the individual's abilities which can result in helplessness and ultimately give rise to work fatigue or burnout syndrome (Koc & Bozkurt, 2018). Prolonged stress can worsen the emotional, physical, and mental condition of nurses, which may cause physical and mental fatigue because energy is drained to deal with constant stress. Work stress that occurs continuously with high intensity can cause burnout (Dewi & Riana, 2019).

All kinds of stress are basically caused by humans' lack of understanding of their own limitations. Inability to fight these limitations will give rise to frustration, conflict, anxiety and feelings of guilty which are the basic types of stress (Widyastuti, 2018). Individuals with high levels of work stress will have a greater chance of experiencing burnout (Candra & Huda, 2018). Many studies have shown that work stress directly influences burnout (Chiang & Liu, 2017).

Prolonged job stress with unstable emotional condition can worsen employees' emotional, physical, and mental conditions and become the initial stage of burnout (Kosasih, 2019). Work stress tends to increase when the work load require high level of responsibility. The level of person's work stress tends to be different according to his/her workload role (Atmaja & Suana, 2018). Excessive workload outside person's ability may cause anxiety, feelings of depression, and even metabolic disorders. Prolonged stress will slowly make a person feel emotionally tired, frustrated with work, start to lose energy, and become less calm in facing their work. This condition causes burnout at work. Work stress is an early symptom of burnout so that the role of work stress greatly influences the level of burnout and excessive workload is a trigger for work stress. This shows the role of work stress as a mediator of influence of workload on burnout. The research results of Dewi and Riana (2019) and Atmaja & Suana (2018) also show the role of work stress as intervening variable between workload and burnout.

This study was conducted at the General Hospital of Negara Regency, Bali Province, Indonesia, particularly in the Intensive Care Unit (ICU) and Emergency Room (ER). The nurses in these two units experience the highest level of work stress due to the imbalance between the number of patients coming and the nurses on duty (based on interview with the nurse's coordinator). Pre-survey result of 6 nurses, namely 1 nurse's head of the ER, 2 nurses of the ER, 1 head of the ICU and 2 nurses related to workload, work stress and burn out shows at Table 1.

Table 1. Pre-Survey Interview Results of Workload, Work Stress, and Burnout

No.	Variable	Interview Results
1.	Workload	Nurses feel that the is high due to the imbalance in the number of patients and nurses, so that nurses feel tired and run out of energy in carrying out their work.
2.	Burnout	Feel physically tired when carrying out the work due to the large number of patients in the ER and ICU. Emotional fatigue is also felt when patients or the patient's family start making complaints and protests against the nurse.
3.	Job Stress	Feel that high burden of work in ER and ICU as well as the lack of medical personnel, result in feel stress at work.

Source: Interview results, 2024

The result at Table 1 show that five nurses experienced boredom and exhaustion in carrying out their work routines. Various reasons were put forward, among others, was the number of patients exceeded capacity and was not balanced with the number of nurses available, monotonous work routines without being balanced by holidays, lack of understanding in operating equipment, and the absence of a reciprocal relationship between nurses and patients. Patients often complain about their illness and the family has various requests or complaints which makes nurses physically, mentally, and emotionally exhausted.

Individuals who cannot successfully deal with stress tend to avoid or withdraw psychologically from his/her work. As a consequence, the body cannot rebuild its ability to deal with stress. According to Kosasih (2019), stress which occurs over a long period of time with a fairly high intensity, characterized by physical, emotional, and mental fatigue, will result in nurses experiencing symptoms of burnout.

Workload is the amount of work that must be carried out by a position or organizational unit and is the product of volume and time period of job (Kosasih, 2019). Workload is a process for determining the number of working hours used or needed to complete a job within a certain time, if this is excessive then burnout occurs This is also supported by several research results, where stated that workload has a positive and significant influence on employee burnout (Melati & Surya, 2015; Atmaja & Suana, 2018; and Wijaya & Wibawa, 2020). Meanwhile, Azka et al. (2022) and Dewi and Riana (2019) found that workload had an insignificant positive effect on burnout. Differences in research results in previous research make it necessary to carry out research again. Work-related stress plays a mediating role in the relationship between workload and burnout by acting as a conduit through which the demands of a heavy workload translate into feelings of burnout. As employees experience increased workload, they are likely to encounter higher levels of stress, which can exacerbate the emotional exhaustion and detachment characteristic of burnout. Therefore, stress related to work conditions mediates the impact of workload on burnout, indicating that managing and mitigating work-related stress can be crucial in preventing or alleviating burnout among employees.

- (1) Workload has a positive and significant effect on burnout.
- (2) Workload has a positive and significant effect on work stress.

- (3) Work stress has a positive and significant effect on burnout.
- (4) Work stress mediates the effect of workload on burnout.

RESEARCH METHODS

This research held at Negara General Hospital. The population used in this study was 56 Negara General Hospital nurses who worked in the ER and ICU. This research uses a sample determination method, namely non-probability sampling with a saturated sampling technique, namely a sample determination technique if all members of the population are used as research samples. Data collection was carried out by conducting interviews and distributing questionnaires to company employees. This research uses data analysis techniques with SPSS 26 software, namely path analysis. Inferential analysis is a statistical technique commonly used to analyze sample data where the results are used for the population Sugiyono (2015:209).

Path Analysis Analysis Results (Path Analysis)

The steps for hypothesis testing using path analysis, as outlined by Riduwan & Kuncoro (2011: 152), are as follows: First, formulate hypotheses and structural equations based on existing theories, which can be represented in models or equations. In this study, the hypotheses include: (1) workload (X) affects burnout (Y), (2) workload (X) affects work stress (Z), (3) work stress (Z) affects burnout (Y), and (4) work stress (Z) mediates the effect of workload (X) on burnout (Y). The structural equations are: Sub-structural Equation 1: $Y = \alpha + \beta_1 X_1 + e_1$, and Sub-structural Equation 2: $Y = \alpha + \beta_1 X_1 + \beta_2 Z + e_2$. Here, X = workload, Z = work stress, Y = burnout, β_1 , β_2 , β_3 = regression coefficients, α = unstandardized coefficients beta, e = error, $e_1 = \sqrt{1 - R^2}$, and $e_2 = \sqrt{1 - R^2}$.

Next, create a path coefficient diagram to analyze direct effects (e.g., workload (X) to work stress (Z) as ρ_1 , work stress (Z) to burnout (Y) as ρ_2 , and workload (X) to burnout (Y) as ρ_3), indirect effects (e.g., $\rho_1 \times \rho_2$), and total effects (e.g., $\rho_1 + (\rho_2 \times \rho_3)$). Then, test the coefficient of determination (R^2) and error variables using formulas such as $e_i = \sqrt{1 - R^2}$ and calculate total $R^2 = 1 - (e_1)^2 - (e_2)^2$. Perform simultaneous hypothesis testing with statistical hypotheses $H_0: \beta_i = 0$ and H_1 : at least one $\beta_i \neq 0$, using manual F-table or SPSS with significance levels at $\alpha = 0.05$. Next, calculate individual path coefficients and test their significance with hypotheses $H_0: \rho_1, \rho_2, \rho_3 = 0$ and $H_1: \rho_1, \rho_2, \rho_3 > 0$, using p-values to determine significance. Finally, summarize and interpret the results to identify significant coefficients and determine the dominant variables.

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

Based on the hypothesis that has been formulated, Structural equation 1 can be formulated as follows:

$$Z = \beta_2 X + e_1$$

Meanwhile, Structural equation 2 can be formulated as follows:

$$Y = \beta_1 X + \beta_3 Z + e_2$$

Commented [M2]: Yang disampaikan disini hanya result and discussion atau hasil dan pembahasan sesuai dengan yang ditulis di skripsi

4
Table 1. Results of Path Analysis in Structure 1

Model	Unstandardized Coefficients		Standardized Coefficients	T	Sig.
	B	Std. Error	Beta		
(Constant)	2,032	0.433		4,689	0,000
Workload	0.423	0.121	0.430	3,502	0.001

R2 : 0.185

Source: Data analysis, 2024

20
Based on the results of the path analysis in Table 1, the structural equation formed can be formulated as follows.

$$Z = \beta_2 X + e_1$$

$$Z = 0.430 X$$

The Structural Equation can be interpreted as follows:

The workload variable has a coefficient of 0.430, meaning that workload has a positive influence on work stress. This means that if the workload increases, work stress will increase, and vice versa, if the workload decreases, work stress will decrease.

Below are the results of the second structural calculation in Table 2.

4
Table 2. Results of Path Analysis in Structure 2

Model	Unstandardized Coefficients		Standardized Coefficients	T	Sig.
	B	Std. Error	Beta		
(Constant)	0.354	0.463		0.766	0.447
Workload	0.314	0.120	0.286	2.606	0.012
Work stress	0,581	0.122	0.520	4.741	0.000

R2: 0.480

Source: Data analysis, 2024

8
Based on the results of the path analysis in Table 2, the structural equation formed can be formulated as follows.

$$Y = \beta_1 X + \beta_3 Z + e_2$$

$$Y = 0.286X + 0.520Z$$

The Structural Equation can be interpreted as follows:

The workload variable has a coefficient of 0.286, meaning that workload has a positive influence on burnout. This means that if workload increases, burnout will increase, and vice versa, if workload decreases, burnout will decrease.

The work stress variable has a coefficient of 0.520, meaning that work stress has a positive influence on burnout. This means that if work stress increases, burnout will increase, and vice versa, if work stress decreases, burnout will decrease.

2) Calculate the error term value (e)

In this test, the value of each coefficient of determination for Structural 1 and Structural 2 will be seen as well as the value of each error variable for each Structural with

Commented [M3]:

Commented [M4]: Titik bukan koma

Commented [M5]: ??????

the aim of preparing the final path diagram model. The following are the results of calculating the value of the error variable in any Structural.

$$e_i = \sqrt{1 - R_i^2}$$

$$e_1 = \sqrt{1 - R_1^2} = \sqrt{1 - 0,185} = 0,903$$

$$e_2 = \sqrt{1 - R_2^2} = \sqrt{1 - 0,480} = 0,721$$

In calculating the influence of the error term (e), the results obtained are explained as follows:

The error value in Structural 1 (e1) is equal to 0.903 which shows that there are other variables that can explain work stress outside of the workload variable is 0.903 (90.3%)

The error value in Structural 2 (e2) is 0.721 which shows that there are other variables that can influence burnout outside of the variables work stress and workload of 0.721 (72.1%).

3) Form the path coefficient diagram

(1) Direct effect

Direct influence occurs if a variable influences another variable without any mediating variable.

- The effect of workload on burnout is 0.286.
- The effect of workload on work stress is 0.430.
- The effect of work stress on burnout is 0.520.

(2) Indirect effect

Indirect influence occurs if there are other variables that mediate the relationship between the two variables. The influence of workload on burnout with the mediation of work stress is $0.430 \times 0.520 = 0.224$.

(3) Total effect

To understand the total influence, this can be done by adding the direct influence of workload on burnout of 0.286 and the indirect influence of workload on burnout through work stress of 0.224, so the result is $0.286 + 0.224 = 0.510$.

Based on the explanation of Structural equations 1 and 2 in this research, the results of the value of the path coefficient calculation will be explained which are shown through the standardized coefficient beta value for each influence of the relationship between variables.

Hypothesis testing

The test criteria to explain the interpretation of the influence between each variable are as follows.

- If $\text{sig} < 0.05$ then H_0 is rejected and H_a is accepted.
If $\text{sig} > 0.05$ then H_0 is accepted and H_a is rejected.

1) Influence workload to burnout

H_0 : Workload does not have a significant positive effect on burnout.

H_a : Workload has a significant positive effect on burnout.

Based on the path analysis results in Table 4.7, the structural equation shows that workload has a Beta value of 0.286 and a significance value (Sig.) of 0.012. Since $0.012 < 0.05$, the null hypothesis is rejected, indicating that workload has a significant positive effect on burnout. This means that as the workload for nurses at the public hospital

Commented [M6]: Dias sesuaikan saja penulisannya dengan yang sdr tulis di skripsi ya. Ini kok botak balk ya.

increases, their burnout levels also rise, and conversely, lower workloads lead to decreased burnout. Thus, the first hypothesis is accepted.

2) The influence of workload on work stress

Ho: Workload does not have a significant positive effect on work stress.

Ha: Workload has a significant positive effect on work stress.

According to the path analysis results in Table 4.6, the structural equation shows that workload has a Beta value of 0.430 and a significance value (Sig.) of 0.001. Since $0.001 < 0.05$, the null hypothesis is rejected, indicating that workload has a significant positive effect on work stress. This means that as the workload for nurses at the public hospital increases, their work stress also increases, and conversely, lower workloads lead to decreased work stress. Thus, the second hypothesis is accepted.

3) Influence of work stress on burnout

Ho: Job stress does not have a significant positive effect on burnout.

Ha: Work stress has a significant positive effect on burnout.

Based on the path analysis results in Table 4.7, the structural equation shows that work stress has a Beta value of 0.520 and a significance value (Sig.) of 0.000. Since $0.000 < 0.05$, the null hypothesis is rejected, indicating that work stress has a significant positive effect on burnout. This means that as work stress for nurses at the public hospital increases, their burnout also increases, and conversely, lower levels of work stress lead to decreased burnout. Thus, the third hypothesis is accepted.

Summarizing and Concluding

Based on the calculations above, it can be summarized as a calculation of the direct influence, indirect influence and total influence of each structural equation which will be presented in Table 3 below.

Table 3. Direct Effect, Indirect Effect Workload(X), Against Work stress(Z) and Burnout (Y)

Influence of variables	Direct influence	Indirect influence via Z	Total Influence	Std. Error	Sig.	Results
X→Z	0.430		0.430	0.121	0.001	Significant
Z→Y	0.520		0.520	0.122	0,000	Significant
X→Y	0.286	0.224	0.510	0.120	0.012	Significant

Source: Data processed in 2024

In Table 3, the summary results of the values for each direct and indirect influence path between variables are displayed as well as the error values for each structural equation produced through path analysis techniques. Below we will explain the meaning of the values in Table 3.

1) The influence of workload on burnout

Research conducted on Negara General Hospital nurses regarding the effect of workload on burnout, it was found that workload had a positive direct influence on burnout of 0.286 and a significance of 0.012

2) The influence of workload on work stress

Research conducted on Negara General Hospital nurses regarding the influence of workload on work stress, it was found that workload had a direct positive influence on work stress of 0.430 and a significance value of 0.001

3) The influence of work stress on burnout

Research conducted on Negara General Hospital nurses regarding the influence of work stress on burnout, it was found that work stress had a direct positive effect on burnout of 0.520 and a significance value of 0.000

4) Job stress mediates the effect of workload on burnout

Research conducted on Negara General Hospital nurses regarding the role of work stress in mediating the influence of workload on burnout, the results obtained were that workload had a positive direct influence on burnout of 0.286 and a positive indirect influence of 0.224 with a total positive influence of 0.510.

Classical Assumption Test

Hypothesis testing can be carried out if the regression model with mediating variables meets the requirements of the classical assumption test. A model theoretically will produce appropriate estimator parameter values if it meets the requirements of classical regression assumptions, which include normality tests, multicollinearity tests and heteroscedasticity tests.

15

1) Normality test

The normality test aims to test whether the regression model of confounding or residual variables has a normal distribution Ghozali (2016: 154). It is known that the t and F tests assume residual values follow a normal distribution. The normality test in this study was carried out by testing the normality of the residuals using the Kolmogorov-Smirnov statistical test. Data is said to be normally distributed if the coefficient is Asym. Sig is greater than $\alpha = 0.05$. The results of the One-Sample Kolmogorov-Smirnov test can be shown in Table 4.

Table 4. Normality Test

Equality	Asymp. Sig. (2-tailed) Kolmogorov-SmirnovZ
Structural 1	0.200
Structural 2	0.200

Source: Data processed in 2024

Based on the normality test using the One-Sample Kolmogorov-Smirnov Test shown in Table 4, it shows that the value Asymp. Sig. (2-tailed) Kolmogorov-Smirnov are 0.200 and 0.200. Mark Asymp. Sig. (2-tailed) Kolmogorov-Smirnov This is greater than the alpha value of 0.05, indicating that the data used in this study is normally distributed, so it can be concluded that the model meets the normality assumption.

2) Multicollinearity test

The multicollinearity test aims to test the regression model whether this regression model finds a correlation between the independent variables Ghozali (2016: 103). A good regression model should have no correlation between independent variables or can be said to be free from multicollinearity. To detect whether or not there is multicollinearity in the data, look at the values Variance Inflation Factor (VIF) < 10 and has value tolerance > 0.10 . The tolerance values and VIF values are shown in Table 5 below:

Table 5. Multicollinearity Test

Model	Collinearity Statistics	
	Tolerance	VIF
Structural 2	Workload	0.815
	Work stress	0.815

Source: Data processed in 2024

Based on Table 5, it is shown that there are no independent variables that have a tolerance value of less than 0.10 and there are also no independent variables that have a VIF value of more than 10. Therefore, the regression model is free from symptoms of multicollinearity.

3) Heteroscedasticity test

The heteroscedasticity test aims to test whether the regression model has unequal variances from the residuals of one observation to another observation Ghozali (2016: 134). If the variance from the residual from one observation to another is constant, it is called homoscedasticity. A good regression model is a regression model that has homogeneous variance. If a regression model contains symptoms of heteroscedasticity, it will give deviant results. Heteroscedasticity testing was carried out using the Glejser method. Table 6 shows the results of statistical calculations using the glesjer method

Table 6. Heteroscedasticity Test

Equality	Model	Q	Sig.
Structural 1	Workload	-0.006	0.995
Structural 2	Workload	-1,362	0.179
	Work stress	-0.342	0.734

Source: Data processed in 2024

Based on Table 6, it is shown that each model has a significance value greater than 5% (0.05). This shows that the independent variable used in this research does not have a significant effect on the dependent variable, namely absolute residual, therefore, this research is free from symptoms of heteroscedasticity.

21

Sobel Test

Mediation hypothesis testing can be done with the Sobel Test. The Sobel test is used to test the strength of the indirect influence of the workload variable (X) on burnout (Y) through the work stress variable (Z). The indirect effect of workload (X) on the burnout variable (Y) through the work stress variable (Z) is calculated by multiplying the path coefficient of X to Z (a) by the path coefficient of Z to Y (b) or ab. The standard errors of coefficients a and b are written as Sa and Sb, the magnitude of the indirect standard error (indirect effect). If the Z calculation value is greater than 1.96 (with a confidence level of 95 percent), then the mediator variable is considered to significantly mediate the relationship between the dependent variable and the independent variable, indicating that Ho is rejected and Ha is accepted.

Ho: Job stress does not mediate the effect of workload against burnout

Ha: Job stress mediates the influence of workload against burnout

$$Z = \frac{ab}{\sqrt{b^2s_a^2 + a^2s_b^2 + s_a^2s_b^2}}$$

Information :

a = 0.430

Sa = 0.121

b = 0.520

17

$$SB = 0.122$$

$$Z = \frac{0,430 \cdot 0,520}{\sqrt{(0,520^2 \cdot 0,121^2) + (0,430^2 \cdot 0,122^2) + (0,121^2 \cdot 0,122^2)}}$$

$$Z = \frac{0,224}{0,083}$$

$$Z = 2.686$$

Based on the results of the Sobel test, it shows that the results $Z = 2.686 > 1.96$, which means that it can be concluded that H_a is accepted, which means that the work stress variable is a significant mediating variable between workload on burnout in Negara General Hospital nurses, so the fourth hypothesis is accepted.

VAF Test

Variance Accounted For (VAF) is a measure of how much the mediating variable is able to absorb direct influence. The VAF test is a test used to calculate the correlation of the path coefficient value compared to the total path coefficient value. The formula for calculating the VAF value is as follows:

$$VAF = \frac{\text{Indirect Influence}}{\text{Direct Influence} + \text{Indirect Influence}}$$

$$= \frac{0,224}{0,286 + 0,224}$$

$$= 0.4388 \text{ (43.88\%)}$$

There are criteria for the form of mediation influence using the VAF value, namely:

- 1) If the VAF value is above 80%, it shows the role of mediation as full mediation.
- 2) If the VAF value is between 20% - 80%, it can be categorized as partial mediation.
- 3) If the VAF value is less than 20%, it shows almost no mediation effect. (no mediation)

Based on the VAF test, the calculated value is 43.88%, which is between 20%-80%, so it can be categorized as partial mediation, so it can be concluded work stress partially mediates workload on burnout in Negara General Hospital nurses.

Discussion of Research Results

The influence of workload on burnout in Negara General Hospital nurses

Based on testing the first hypothesis in this research, the results were obtained that workload matters positive and significant to burnout For Negara General Hospital nurses, these results can be interpreted as if the workload felt by Negara General Hospital nurses increases, it will have an impact on increasing burnout among Negara General Hospital nurses, and vice versa, if the workload decreases, it will have an impact. reduction in burnout in Negara General Hospital nurses.

Workload is a task given to workers to be completed within a certain time period Munandar, (2014:20). Zetti. (2019) explain that workload can be interpreted as a difference between a person's abilities and the job demands that must be faced, where human work has different levels of burden. Workload has an impact on levels burnout that someone experiences. Excessive workload will cause a person to start to show boredom and boredom with the same work every day, always being required to provide quality service, and being required to work under any conditions, causing a person to experience burnout. This problem will of course be the trigger for this to happen burnout.

11
This is supported by the results of research by Malino (2020) which states that workload shows positive and significant results on burnout. The research results of Kusumaningrum, et al., (2020) also state that workload has a significant positive effect on burnout. These results are also in line with research by Atmaja & Suana (2018), Resa & Dwiyanto (2021) stated that workload showed positive and significant results on burnout.

7 **The Influence of Workload on Work Stress in Negara General Hospital Nurses**

Based on testing the second hypothesis in this research, results were obtained that workload has a positive and significant influence on work stress, this result can be interpreted as increasing workload felt by nurses at Negara General Hospital then the level of work stress increases Negara General Hospital nurse, as well as as high as it goes down workload felt by nurses at Negara General Hospital, then the level of work stress decreases on nurses at the Negara General Hospital. So the second hypothesis in this research is declared accepted.

(Munandar, 2014:20) workload is a task given to workers to be completed within a certain period of time. (Zetli, 2019) explains that workload can be interpreted as a difference between a person's abilities and the job demands that must be faced, where human work has different levels of burden. All kinds of stress are basically caused by humans' lack of understanding of their limitations. Excessive workload beyond a person's ability causes anxiety, feelings of pressure, and always feeling guilty about something that happens, even causing metabolic disorders in the body (Widyastuti, 2018). This condition makes a person have no interest or interest in their work. Anxiety is the cause of work stress in a person due to the pressure or large workload, so that a person feels unhappy and uncomfortable in completing their work.

This is supported by research by Arifiani et al., (2019) which states that excessive workload can trigger increased stress experienced by employees. This is in line with research conducted by Kokoroko & Sanda (2019) which shows that workload has a positive and significant effect on work stress. Other research that supports this statement was conducted by (Mahaiswari & Rahyuda, 2015), (Wijaya, 2018) and Suarhana & Riana (2016) who stated that workload has a positive and significant effect on work stress.

The influence of work stress on burnout in Negara General Hospital nurses

Based on testing the third hypothesis in this research, results were obtained that work stress has a positive and significant influence on burnout. These results can be interpreted as if the higher the work stress experienced by Negara General Hospital nurses, the burnout of Negara General Hospital nurses will increase, and vice versa, if the work stress experienced by Negara General Hospital nurses decreases, burnout will be reduced. Negara General Hospital nurse. So the third hypothesis in this research is declared accepted.

Stress is a dynamic condition of a person who is faced with opportunities, demands or resources related to what the individual wants and the results are considered uncertain and important. Work stress is a feeling of pressure experienced by employees related to their work, such as experiencing unstable emotions, feeling uneasy and often being alone. Mangkunegara (2013: 157). A job that is not suitable for a person will make the person irritable, stressed by varying jobs, have a desire to change jobs, and experience sleep disorders, then this condition results in a person's helplessness which ultimately gives rise to work fatigue syndrome or what is known as burnout. (Koc & Bozkurt, 2018). Rahmawati & Amir (2013) stated that burnout occurs more easily in individuals who have experienced continuous, prolonged work stress as a result of feeling powerless to change the work situation.

These results are in line with research conducted by Kardiawan (2017) which found that there was a positive and significant influence between work stress and burnout. Other research that supports this statement was conducted by Priyantika (2018), then research by Khusniyah and Yuwono (2014), as well as research by Bayuardi (2021) which states that work stress has a positive and significant effect on burnout which means the higher the work stress faced, the higher it will be burnout experienced.

The role of work stress in mediating the influence of workload on burnout in Negara General Hospital nurses

Based on the results of testing the fourth hypothesis in this research, it shows that work stress is able to mediate the influence of workload on burnout in Negara General Hospital nurses by mediating work stress, so that work stress is a partial mediating variable of influence workload on burnout, this shows that if the workload felt by Negara General Hospital nurses increases then Negara General Hospital nurses will have high work stress, with increasing work stress it will increase burnout among Negara General Hospital nurses. So the fourth hypothesis in this research is declared accepted.

Burnout is physical, mental and emotional fatigue that occurs due to stress suffered over a long period of time and with high emotional involvement. Fatigue will affect productivity, quality, job satisfaction and performance. Burnout can happen to an employee when his emotional condition is unstable and the stress experienced by the employee is prolonged. The employee has no interest or interest in the work he is doing. Job stress is able to mediate the effect of workload on burnout. This means that when someone feels bored doing the same job every day, is required to always be ready to work under any conditions, and feels bored, then someone experiences the problem of excessive workload. A person feels a high workload which often causes feelings of anxiety, feeling unsuitable for the job, always blaming themselves and even causing sleep disturbances. This condition is what triggers work stress. If someone experiences prolonged work stress, they feel frustrated, physically and emotionally tired, feel that their work is emotionally draining, and are less enthusiastic about working. then a person's burnout attitude at work will appear.

The results of this research are in line with research by Kusumawati and Dewi (2021) stating work stress mediate the effect of workload on burnout. The same results were also obtained by research by Adung et al., (2023). Dewi & Riana's research results. (2019), Atmaja & Suana. (2018) also explained that work stress is able to mediate the positive effect of workload on work fatigue (burnout).

CONCLUSION

Based on the research results, several key conclusions can be drawn. First, the study found that workload has a positive and significant effect on burnout among nurses at Negara General Hospital. Second, workload also has a positive and significant impact on work stress for these nurses. Third, work stress itself significantly contributes to burnout among the nurses at Negara General Hospital. Lastly, work stress serves as a partial mediating variable, influencing the relationship between workload and burnout in the nurses at this hospital.

Based on the research findings, Negara General Hospital should consider several key recommendations to improve nurse well-being and reduce burnout. First, it is crucial to manage workload effectively by implementing strategies to alleviate excessive demands on nurses. This

might involve optimizing staff schedules, delegating tasks more efficiently, and providing additional support or resources as needed. Second, addressing work stress through targeted programs and support systems is essential. Introducing stress management initiatives, offering counseling services, and fostering a supportive work environment can help nurses cope with work-related stress. Third, regular monitoring of burnout levels is necessary to identify early signs and provide timely interventions. This could be achieved through periodic surveys, feedback mechanisms, and open channels for nurses to voice their concerns. Finally, enhancing support systems that address both workload and stress factors will be beneficial. Integrating burnout prevention strategies into daily operations and ensuring that support services are easily accessible will contribute to improving nurse well-being, job satisfaction, and overall performance at Negara General Hospital.

BIBLIOGRAPHY

- Adiguna, A.A.B.W., & Suwandana, I.G.M (2023). The Relationship Between Burnout, Work Stress, and Turnover Intention on Non-Permanent (Contract) Employees: Study at the Communication and Information Office of Badung Regency, Indonesia. *European Journal of Business and Management Research*, 8(3), 104–107.
- Adung, SUG, Wulandari, W., & Mulyono, M. (2023). The Effect of Workload on Burnout Mediated by Job Stress: (Study at PT. BestProfit Futures in Malang City). *Indonesian Journal of Creative Economy*, 1(4), 289-303.
- Afandi, Pandi. (2018). *Human Resource Management: Theory, Concepts and Indicators*. Riau: Zanafa Publishing.
- Afzal, M.T., Idrees, M., Fardous, N., & Ambreen, M.(2019). Relationship between Workload and Burnout in Pakistani College Teachers. *Journal of Research and Reflections in Education*, 13(1), 148-154
- Arifiani, D., Amalia, A., Naibaho, H., & Pitaloka, E. (2019). The Role of Work Stress as a Mediating Variable in the Relationship Between Workload and Intention to Leave. *Knowledge E Social Sciences*, 1(1), 175–181.
- Asih, GY Hardani. W, Rusmalia. D. 2018. *Job Stress*, First Printing. Semarang : University Press.
- Atmaja, I.G.I.W, & Suana, I.W (2018). The Effect of Workload on Burnout with Role Stress as a Mediating Variable in Rumors Restaurant Employees. *Udayana University Management E-Journal*, 8(2), 815-817.
- Azka, A., Birwin, A., & Farradika, Y. (2022). Incidents of Burnout Syndrome in the Online Learning Process among Final Year Students. *Journal of Public Health*, 3(2), 80-88.
- Budiasa, K. (2021) *Workload and Human Resource Performance*. Purwokerto : CV. Pena Persada
- Candra, I., & Huda, AN (2018). The Relationship Between Work Stress and Married Career Vanita at the Padang I Gasar Foundation *Psychohumanika*, 9(1), 15-30.

Commented [M7]: A.A.B.W.....sesuaikan semua

Commented [M8]: Coba cek di format jumlahnya apakah nama jurnal tidak dicetak miring?

Commented [M9]: ini benar nama jurnalnya?

Commented [M10]: Satu halaman saja? CEK

Commented [M11]: ?????

Chiang, C.F., & Liu, B.Z. (2017). Examining Job Stress and Burnout of Hotel Room Attendants: Internal Marketing and Organizational Commitment as Moderators. *Journal of Human Resources in Hospitality and Tourism*, 16(4), 367-383.

Christy, M.Y.P., & Priartini, P.S (2019). Role of Work Stress and Organizational Commitments in Educating Workload Effect on Intention to Quit. *International Research Journal of Management, IT and Social Sciences*, 6(4), pp. 8-16.

Dewi, R.S & Riana, I.G (2019). The Effect of Workload on Role Stress and Burnout. *Journal of Multidisciplinary Academic*, 03(3). 123-140.

Puspitasari, D.A & Handayani M.M (2014). The Relationship between Teacher Self-Efficacy Levels and Burnout Levels among Inclusive School Teachers in Surabaya. *Journal of Developmental Psychology and Education*, 3(1): 59-68

Eviaty & Satiadarma M.P (2005). Perceptions of Co-Workers' Social Support and Burnout Symptoms (Study of Intensive Care Unit Nurses). *Phronesis Journal*, 7(2), 102-118.

Commented [M12]: Ini benar Namanya?

Extiavisca, L., & Hutomo, M. (2018). Analysis of Workload and Burnout of PT Expedition Department Employees. *Nirvana Alabare Garment*. Frima, 6681, 1081-1098.

Commented [M13]: Ini buku atau artikel ilmiah???CEK

Ghozali, I. (2018). *Multivariate Analysis Applications with the IBM SPSS 25 Program (9th Edition)*. Semarang: Diponegoro University Publishing Agency.

Greenberg J, & Baron R A. 2003. *Behavior in Organizations Understanding and Managing the Human Side of Work*. New Jersey: Prentice-Hal.

Kardiawan, R. (2017). The Influence of Job Satisfaction, Job Stress, and Burnout on Turnover Intention at PT. Lotus Indah Textile Industries, Nganjuk Regency. *Journal of Management Science*, 6(4), 486.

Koc, E., & Bozkurt, G. A. (2018). Hospitality Employees' Future Expectations: Dissatisfaction, Stress, and Burnout. *International Journal of Hospitality and Tourism Administration*, 18(4), 459-473.

Kokoroko, E., & Sanda, M. A. (2019). Effect of Workload on Job Stress of Ghanaian OPD Nurses: The Role of Coworker Support. *Safety and Health at Work*, 10(3), pp. 341-346.

Kusumaningrum, IY, Sunardi, S., & Saleh, C. (2016). The Influence of Workload and Individual Characteristics on Nurse Performance Through Burnout as an Intervening Variable at PT. Nusantara Medika Utama Plantation Hospital (Jember Clinic). *BISMA: Journal of Business and Management*, 10(3), 329-342.

Lan, Y.L., Lin, Y.C., Yan, Y.H., & Tang, Y.P. (2018). relationship between work stress, workload, and quality of life among rehabilitation professionals. *International Journal of Healthcare and Medical Sciences*, 4(6), 105-110.

Mahaiswari, A., & Rahyuda, AG (2015). The Role of Job Stress in Mediating the Effect of Psychological Contract and Workload on Employees' Desire to Leave the Organization: Study at a Beauty Clinic. *E-Journal Management*, Udayana University, 4(4), p. 930–942.

Commented [M14]: Benar ini nama jurnalnya?

Malino, DSD (2020). The Effect of Workload on Job Satisfaction with Burnout as an Intervening at the Makassar Branch of the Indonesian Post Office. *Commerce*, 9(2), 94-101.

Mangkunegara, A. (2013). *Human Resource Management*. Bandung: PT Teen Rosdakarya.

Melati, PP, & Surya, IBK (2015). The Effect of Workload on Job Satisfaction with Job Stress as a Mediating Variable. *E-Journal of Management*, Udayan University 4(5), 1149–1165.

Commented [M15]: ini nama jurnalnya? Lihat konsistensi dengan Mahaiswari di atas. E-Journal Management, Udayana University. Ini yang benar

Munandar, A.S (2014). *New Era of Management Book 1 & 2*. Jakarta: Salemba.

Commented [M16]: apa ini?

Pradana, BA, Kristanto, RS, & Hidayat, DS (2017). The Influence of Work Environment and Workload on Burnout in Nurses at Kardinah Hospital, Tegal City. *Magisma Journal*, 5(2), 61–70. <https://doi.org/10.35829/magisma.v5i2.28>

Priyantika, D.F (2018). The influence of work stress on the performance of PT engineering department employees. Pelindo Marine Service Surabaya through burnout as an intervening variable. *Journal of Management Science*, 6(3), 296-305.

Putu, D., Paramitha, C., & Rahyuda, A.G (2023). The Mediating Role of Entrepreneurial Attitudes in the Effect of Entrepreneurship Education and Family Support on Entrepreneurial Intentions. *JUDAYANA UNIVERSITY E-JOURNAL OF ECONOMICS AND BUSINESS*. 12(03), 375–385

Commented [M17]: Judul artikel???

Putu, D., Wahyunasih, P., Ayu, G., & Dewi, M. (2021). Does Job Stress Mediate the Effect of Work Load and Work-Family Conflict on Nurses' Burnouts? The International Organization of Scientific Research (IOSR) | Issue 1. Ser. II, 23, 1–12.

Commented [M18]: Nama jurnal

Rajan S, Barjinder S, Peggy A.C (2015). Role of personality and affect on the social support and work family conflict relationships. *Journal of Vocational Behavior*, 9(4), 39–56

Riduwan, & Kuncoro, EA (2011). *How to Use and Interpret Path Analysis*. Bandung: Alfabeta.

Rivai V. and Mulyadi. 2010. *Leadership and Organizational Behavior*. Jakarta: PT Raja Grafindo Persada

Robbins, S.P., & Judge, T.A. (2013). *Organizational Behavior (15th ed.)*. Pearson Prentice Hall. New Jersey.

Commented [M19]: Nama penerbit, kota penerbit

Rubab, U. (2017). Impact of Work Family Conflict on Burnout and Workplace Deviant Behavior: Mediating Role of Stress. *Jinnah Business Review*, 5(1), 1-10.

Commented [M20]: Benar nama jurnalnya?

Saputro, R., Aima, MH, & Elmi, F. (2020). Effect of Work Stress And Work Load On Burnout And Its Implementation In Turnover Intention Erha Clinic Branch Office (Bogor, Depok And Mangga Besar). *Dynasty International Journal of Management Science*, 1(2), 191–203.

Sintyadewi, NPMN, & Dewi, IGAM (2020). The Role of Burnout in Mediating the Effect of Job Stress on Turnover Intention of Kutabex Beach Front Hotel Bali Employees. *Management E-Journal*, Udayana University 9(6), 2308– 2331.

Commented [M21]:

Sugiyono. (2015). *Quantitative Qualitative Research Methods and R&D*. Bandung: Alfabeta

Suardiningsih & Surya, IB (2021). The Role of Role Stress in Mediating the Effect of Work Load on Nurse Burnout. *Management E-Journal*, Udayana University 10(10), 988-1009.

Commented [M22]:

Suarthana, JHP, & Riana, IG (2016). The Effect of Psychological Contract Breach and Workload on Intention to Leave: Mediating Role of Job Stress. *Procedia - Social and Behavioral Sciences*, 219, 717–723.

Suartana, IP, & Dewi, IGAM (2020). The Influence of Job Stress, Workload, And Work-Family Conflict On Job Satisfaction of Swiss Belinn Hotel Employees. *Management E-Journal*, Udayana University 9(3), 863-869.

Suryadi, A., Zadi, FI, & Sukma D., D. (2018). Analysis of Workload Levels for Automated Stacking Crane (ASC) Operators Using the Nasa-TLX (National Aeronautics and Space Administration Task Load Index) Method at PT. Lamong Bay Terminal, Surabaya. *Tekmapro: Journal of Industrial Engineering and Management*, 13(2).

Commented [M23]: Cek judul

Wati, H., Abdullah, R., & Tamsah, H. (2016). The Influence of Dual Role Conflict, Workload and Burnout on the Performance of Female Nurses at RSUD I Lagaligo, East Luwu Regency. *Mirai Management Journal*, Volume 1 (No. 1), 119-135.

Commented [M24]: konsisten

Widyastuti, N. (2018). The Influence of Job Stress and Workload on the Performance of SKPD Sintang Regency, West Kalimantan. *Maxpreneur Journal: Management, Cooperatives, and Entrepreneurship*, 4(2), 15-32.

Wijaya, A. (2018). The Effect of Workload on Job Satisfaction with Job Stress as a Mediating Variable for Workers at the Maxone Hotel Malang. *Parsimonia*, 4(3), 278–288.

Wijaya, IM, & Wibawa, IM (2020). Workload Influences Burnout with the Work Family Conflict Variable as a Mediator. *Management E-journal*, Udayana University 9(2), 597-616.

Commented [M25]:

Wijaya, Y. (2020). The Influence of Work Life Balance and Workload on Work Motivation (Study at PT Mayora Indah. *Agora*, 8(1), 125-127.

Commented [M26]: halaman

Udayana University BURNOUT OF PUBLIC HOSPITAL NURSE: DOES WORK STRESS AND WORKLOAD CAUSE PROLONGED PHYSICAL, EMOTIONAL, AND MENTAL EXHAUSTION

ORIGINALITY REPORT

17%

SIMILARITY INDEX

17%

INTERNET SOURCES

14%

PUBLICATIONS

9%

STUDENT PAPERS

PRIMARY SOURCES

1	I Gusti Bagus Hery Stiawan, I Made Jatra. "The Role of Brand Image Mediate the Influence of Price Fairness on Purchase Decisions for Local Fashion Brand Products", European Journal of Business and Management Research, 2022 Publication	2%
2	econeurasia.com Internet Source	1%
3	jkmsdm.ppj.unp.ac.id Internet Source	1%
4	erepo.unud.ac.id Internet Source	1%
5	www.ijcrr.info Internet Source	1%
6	equatorscience.com Internet Source	1%

7	Rahayu Tri Utami, Susilo Wulandari, Sandi Nasrudin Wibowo, Liyanah. "Effect of Competency and Workload on Work Stress on Employees of PT. Pramadani Cipta Kreasi Kab. Cirebon", Quantitative Economics and Management Studies, 2022 Publication	1 %
8	Submitted to Valdosta State University Student Paper	1 %
9	id.123dok.com Internet Source	1 %
10	Submitted to President University Student Paper	1 %
11	journal.walideminstitute.com Internet Source	1 %
12	www.asianinstituteofresearch.org Internet Source	1 %
13	Submitted to Hong Kong Baptist University Student Paper	1 %
14	digitalcommons.calpoly.edu Internet Source	1 %
15	journal.umg.ac.id Internet Source	1 %
16	jsss.co.id Internet Source	1 %

17	repository.ub.ac.id Internet Source	1 %
18	Aktrilianjas Ulpa, Diah Isnaini Asiati, Maftuhah Nurrahmi. "Effect of Leadership and Training on Employee Performance through Competency at PT Pertamina Drilling Services Project Sumatera Bagian Selatanproject Sumatera Bagian Selatan", International Journal of Marketing & Human Resource Research, 2024 Publication	1 %
19	mapindo.ejurnal.info Internet Source	1 %
20	Wahyudi Putera, Nisma Iriani, Sanny Feria Julian, Nurjanna, Abdul Rahman, Riska Sucianti. "Digital Business Development Strategy as a Determinant of Business Competitiveness Through E-Commerce of MSMEs Products in Indonesia", European Journal of Theoretical and Applied Sciences, 2023 Publication	1 %
21	journal.umy.ac.id Internet Source	1 %
22	Submitted to University of Surrey Student Paper	1 %

Exclude quotes On

Exclude matches < 1%

Exclude bibliography On

Udayana University BURNOUT OF PUBLIC HOSPITAL NURSE: DOES WORK STRESS AND WORKLOAD CAUSE PROLONGED PHYSICAL, EMOTIONAL, AND MENTAL EXHAUSTION

GRADEMARK REPORT

FINAL GRADE

GENERAL COMMENTS

/0

PAGE 1

PAGE 2

PAGE 3

PAGE 4

PAGE 5

PAGE 6

PAGE 7

PAGE 8

PAGE 9

PAGE 10

PAGE 11

PAGE 12

PAGE 13

PAGE 14

PAGE 15

PAGE 16